
* GVR encourages members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful manner.

AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Wednesday, January 24, 2024 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Jim Carden (Treasurer), Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Joe Magliola (Assistant Treasurer), Nancy 
Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Richard Sutherland, Scott Somers  
(non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda

3. President’s Report

4. CEO Report

5. Member Comments – regarding Consent Agenda and/or Non-Agenda Items – Speakers are asked to provide their name
and GVR member number. Please limit comments to two (2) minutes.

6. Presentations
A. Quarterly Financial Report (Webster)
B. New Website (Whitman)

7. Committee Reports
A. Audit (Austin)
B. Board Affairs (Crothers)
C. Fiscal Affairs (Carden)
D. Investments (Lawless)
E. Nominations & Elections (Dingman)
F. Planning & Evaluation (Bachelor)

8. Consent Agenda – Consent Agenda items are routine items of business that are collectively presented for approval
through a single motion. A Board member may request that an item be pulled from the Consent Agenda and placed under
Action Items for separate discussion and action.
A. Minutes:

1) BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: November 15, 2023
2) BOD Work Session Minutes: January 17, 2024

B. Financial Statements:
1) November and December Financials

9. Action Items
A. Audit Committee Proposed Changes to the CPM Part 3, Section 5 (Austin)
B. Board Affairs Committee Recommendation for Elections 2024 (Crothers)

1) Director Transition Process (12 to 9)
2) Ballot Format

10. Member Comments - Please limit comments to two (2) minutes.

11. Adjournment



1

6.a Quarterly Report



2



3



4



5



MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, November 15, 2023 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Jim Carden (Treasurer), Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Joe Magliola (Assistant Treasurer), 
Nancy Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Richard Sutherland, Scott 
Somers (non-voting) 

Staff Present: David Jund (Facilities Director), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), Howey 
Murray (Finance Manager), Michaela Osborn (Project Manager), David Webster (CFO), Natalie 
Whitman (COO), Kris Zubicki (Member Services Director) 

Visitors: 26  

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Garneau called the meeting to order at 2pm MST. Secretary Hillyer called the roll;
quorum established.

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda
MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director Gilbert seconded to combine Action Item A.1
and A.2 to be approved as originally intended, as approved by the Annual Budget including
the Capital Budget Plan, with all fees as recommended by the Planning and Evaluation and
the Fiscal Affairs Committee.
Failed: 4 yes (Bachelor, Gilbert, Lawless, Sutherland) / 7 no / 1 abstain (Dingman)

MOTION: Director Crothers moved, Director Blake seconded to adopt the Agenda as
presented.
Passed: 11 yes / 1 abstain (Lawless)

3. President Report
Thanked people in the audience for coming to the meeting. Thanked the Committees for the
work they have done over the last month on the budget. Thanked staff, and especially David
Webster and Scott Somers, for all the hours put into making this budget straightforward.

4. CEO Report
• Glass Arts Space: major construction completed and planning a December 29 Grand

Opening.
• Del Sol Clubhouse and parking lot: Del Sol Clubhouse project is in the preconstruction

phase. The architectural drawings were approved by Pima County. Issuance of the
building permit is expected this week. If the contract is approved today, construction
could begin as early as December. Staff are working on moving forward on the café
area with limited kitchen space.

6

8.A.1 Minutes



• Canoa Hills Center: still closed for remodeling, general contractor estimating end of
November completion for installation of tile in the locker rooms and restrooms. After
completion of all the work, the Center will be open at the end of the year.

• West Center: Architects have been working on concept plans with the Lapidary Club.
The cost estimation on any expansion is underway and will be brought back to the
Board for review. Timeline for West Center may be the beginning of next year.

• West Center Woodshop: vacuum construction is completed and the Woodshop is
open.

• Desert Hills Auditorium Sound: attempts are in process to mitigate noise in the
auditorium, but more needs to be done and solutions are being sought.

5. Member Comments: 6 members with topics regarding: parallel stretching bars at Desert Hills;
noise level at Desert Hills; Arts and Crafts Festival logistics; encouraged upkeep of the facilities
and raise dues if needed; praise for GVR staff; encouragement for upgrading the Ceramics Kiln
Room; and importance of raising dues.

6. Committee Reports – All reports received and placed on file.
A. Audit
B. Board Affairs
C. Fiscal Affairs
D. Investments
E. Nominations & Elections
F. Planning & Evaluation

7. Consent Agenda
MOTION: Director Dingman moved, Director Sutherland seconded to approve Consent
Agenda.
Passed: unanimous
A. Minutes:
 BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: October 25, 2023

8. Action Items
A. Approve Annual Budget and All Fees

1) Operating Budget with Recommended Fee Schedule
CEO Scott Somers reviewed the Operating and Expense Budget with the FAC
recommended fee schedule.

MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director Carden seconded to adopt the
Operating Budget with the Recommended Fee Schedule as presented.

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Crothers moved, Director Carden seconded to remove
all references to the café which includes three head counts (FTE) for nine months at
$101,400, $50,000 line item, and $25,000 revenue. That is a total of $126,400
removed out of the budget.
Failed:  6 yes / 6 no (Bachelor, Dingman, Gilbert, Lawless, Magliola, Sutherland)

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Garneau moved, Director Hillyer seconded to adopt a
budget and new fee schedule as is but do not approve the café at this time or
anything in the café area until the research is done.
Passed: 8 yes / 4 no (Bachelor, Dingman, Gilbert, Lawless)

7



AMENDED MOTION PASSED: 9 yes / 2 no (Austin, Hillyer) Director Blake was out of 
the room for the vote. 

Amended Motion: Adopt the Operating Budget with the Recommended Fee Schedule 
as presented, but do not approve the café at this time or anything in the café area 
until the research is done. 

2) Capital Plan (2024-2028) and Capital Budget (2024)
CEO Scott Somers reviewed the Capital Budget for 2024 and the Capital Plan for 2024 –
2028. Highlights included from Page 51 in the Meeting Book:

• The $181,177 under Del Sol Clubhouse is the difference between the contract
of $1.2 million and the additional dollars needed outside of the contract. The
actual contract would be awarded for $1.08 million.

• Facility Director David Jund explained the $1.2 million is a placeholder for 2024
for Del Sol Clubhouse, but GVR is waiting for construction documents to
identify the cost. The 2023 budget for the Clubhouse was roughly $800,000
towards completing the upper floor to be used as a social area, café and
restrooms to ADA standards. The 2024 budget for Del Sol Clubhouse of $1.2
million is for the lower level to be built out, two restrooms added to the lower
level, some parking lot work, and an inside staircase between the upper and
lower floors. There is money in this budget for a poker room on the upper level,
but unsure it will move forward.

• Michaela Osborn, GVR Project Manager, stated GVR can hold the contingency
for the Del Sol Clubhouse.

• Discussion was held on the West Center Lapidary, Woodshop, Artisan
Expansion budget numbers. This project budget is $2 million and will need to
go to the members for approval. It is anticipated that the $2 million would be
spent over a two-year period. Consensus of the Board was to budget for
$100,000 for 2024 for architectural drawings and construction documents and
include the $2 million in 2025.

• Desert Hills Kiln Room is budgeted for $90,000 in 2024 to bring it up to code. It
does not qualify for Maintenance Repair and Replacement (MRR) due to all
new components.

• Canoa Hills Gym conversion is budgeted in 2024 for $180,000.

MOTION: Director Crothers moved to move the Canoa Hills Gym Conversion out of 
the 2024 budget to take time to understand the full plan. There was no second – did 
not move forward. 

• West Center Lobby Improvement is in the 2024 budget for $150,000.

MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Crothers seconded to remove the security 
cameras from the Capital Project list.  
Passed:  8 yes / 3 no (Bachelor, Dingman, Gilbert) / 1 abstain (Sutherland)  

• Lazy River is in the Capital Plan for 2026-2028.
• Las Campanas Fitness Center expansion is in the Capital Plan budget for 2027-

2028.
• East Center Outdoor Pavilion does not currently have a dollar amount or a

timeline.
• Desert Hills Yoga Studio does not currently have a dollar amount or a timeline.

8



• Metal Shop facility does not currently have a dollar amount or a timeline.
• Desert Hills Locker Rooms Renovation and Steam Room can partly be paid for

by the MRR, approximately $50,000. This project is in the 2024 Capital Plan
budget.

MOTION: Director Garneau moved, Director Crothers seconded to take off the 
Desert Hills Locker Rooms and Steam Room from the 2024 budget.  
Failed: 6 yes (Austin, Blake, Carden, Crothers, Garneau, Hillyer) / 6 no  

MOTION: Director Garneau moved, to move the Desert Hills Locker Rooms and 
Steam Room to 2025 budget. This motion did not move forward – no second. 

• Del Sol Clubhouse additional funds of $181,177 can be taken out of the budget
if GVR holds the contingency.

• With the changes discussed for the 2024 Capital Budget it is changed from
$2,171,177 to $965,000

MOTION: Director Blake moved, Director Carden seconded to accept the Capital 
Budget and the Capital Plan.  
Passed: 11 yes / 1 no (Crothers) 

B. Award of Contract for Del Sol Clubhouse and Approve Additional Funds outside the
Contract

MOTION: Director Sutherland moved, Director Gilbert seconded to move all the Billiards
(from East Center, West Center, and Desert Hills) to Del Sol Clubhouse lower level.
Failed: 3 yes (Garneau, Gilbert, Sutherland) / 9 no

MOTION: Director Hillyer moved, Director Crothers seconded to adjourn the meeting.
Failed: 4 yes (Austin, Carden, Crothers, Hillyer) / 8 no

MOTION: Director Gilbert moved, Director Blake seconded to award the Del Sol
Clubhouse contract for $1,083,943.
Passed: 8 yes / 4 no (Austin, Carden, Crothers, Hillyer)

9. Member Comments - (Limited to two (2) minutes)

10. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Hillyer moved, Director Crothers seconded to adjourn the Regular
Meeting at 6:04pm.
Passed: unanimous

9



 GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful manner. 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS WORK SESSION 

Wednesday, January 17, 2024, 3pm 
WC Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors Present: Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer 
(Secretary), Jim Carden (Treasurer), Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Joe Magliola (Assistant 
Treasurer), Nancy Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Richard 
Sutherland, Scott Somers (non-voting) 

Staff Present: Steve Mendoza (Facilities Director), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David 
Webster (CFO), Natalie Whitman (COO), Kris Zubicki (Member Services Director)  

Visitors: 3 

AGENDA TOPIC 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call
Work Session Called to Order at 3:13pm by President Garneau. Secretary Hillyer called the
roll.

2. Amend / Approve Agenda
MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Bachelor seconded to approve the Agenda.
Passed: unanimous

3. Fiscal Affairs Committee Subcommittee Business Plan for Del Sol Clubhouse
Nellie Johnson chaired the subcommittee and presented an overview of the subcommittee’s
proposed business plan. Highlights include:

• Prior Strategic Plans and Ad Hoc Committees identified the need for a social gathering
place, with a café as an essential component.

• Currently a survey is available online (GVR website) for the café and will be completed
at the end of the month.

• The Del Sol Clubhouse is different from all other GVR facilities. The purpose of Del Sol
Clubhouse is to be a social gathering place which fosters a sense of belonging and
social cohesion within a community.

• The café is an integral part of Del Sol Clubhouse and is an amenity for the GVR
Members. The plan is for the revenues from the café to support the café as much as
possible. The café business plan shows that it will break even by the 11th month in
operation. Rent and utilities will not be included as an expense.

• The café would be a food preparation place and not a full restaurant.
• The staffing aspect is crucial to the success of the café.

10

8.A.2 Minutes



 GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful manner. 

• There is an outdoor patio in the back and front which will allow for a pet-friendly
experience. The Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) will need to be changed to allow for
pets at this facility.

• Target market is the 23,000 potential GVR Members, especially those in the 85622 zip
code, closest to Del Sol Clubhouse.

• Goals are to provide services to the members with limited finances by working with
GVR Foundation for a grant opportunity, and provide mobility to those with mobility
issues by working with nonprofits in the Green Valley area for transportation.

• The business plan proposes allowing for non-GVR members in the café. The CPM will
need to be changed to allow for non-GVR members at this facility.

• The subcommittee discussed paid staff versus volunteers. Some of the issues was
liability and licensing because of food preparation and possibly alcohol service.

• Paid staff possibility would be a working café manager who would be 75 percent a
working manager, and 25 percent administrative/marketing. Marketing would be to
the community and GVR Clubs. Peak hours would require 3 employees (including
Manager) but have a total of 4 employees.

• Seating capacity is 80, open six days, hours per day from 7am – 3pm.
• There are options to the proposed business plan if cost is the main issue. Cutting

hours, days, and lower staffing needs. The vending machine only does not create a
warm atmosphere and direct relationship with customers and staff. This was not a
viable option from the subcommittee. The survey will help with this decision.

• The subcommittee will meet February 8 to refine the business plan from the survey
results completed and the feedback from Fiscal Affairs Committee and the Board.

The Board discussion highlights include: 
• A few vendors were asked early in the process to consider opening at Del Sol

Clubhouse and the discussions were preliminary. The main reason for no vendor
committing to opening another café was more about expansion and staffing issues. A
concern to turning the Del Sol Clubhouse café over to an outside vendor was losing
some control of the space.

• The subcommittee was asked to keep the Board apprised of developments as the
survey is complete. The process that was approved at the November 15, 2023, Board
Meeting, was to allow research to be complete before any decisions are made.

• To have a social gathering space there needs to be a draw for people to come (not just
tables and chairs) and beverages and food help. It could be there is a phase in process
in the business plan to gauge interest.

• Currently people bring their own food and beverages to Del Sol Clubhouse while
watching football.

• The Board’s decision is to figure out what they want the social gathering place to look
like and what is needed to make it happen after the research is complete and
presented.

4. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Hillyer moved, Director Austin seconded to adjourn the meeting at
4:15pm.
Passed: unanimous

11



2 12

8.B.1 Financials



3 13



4 14



5 15



17 16



18 17



19 18



20 19



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Work Session 

CPM Part 3, Section 5 Audit Committee 
Committee Responsibility Updates 

Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: January 24, 2024 

Presented By: David Webster, CFO Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Audit Committee 

Action Requested: 
Review the proposed changes to CPM Part 3 Committees Section 5 Audit Committee. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 

Background Justification: 
During the facilitated and dedicated Board Work Session on committee improvements in May 
2023, the Board, with the facilitation of a consultant, Jenny Carrillo of Alexander/Carrillo 
Consulting, discussed needed improvements to GVR’s committee structure. Ms. Carrillo 
suggested that the Board review all of its committees, paying particular attention to the 
purpose and responsibility assigned to each committee. She, along with Board members, 
discussed the possibility of eliminating some of the committees or the responsibilities of the 
committee, if necessary, since committees should not perform the duties of staff or act in 
place of the Board. The Committee purpose is to advise the Board on policy matters. It was 
decided that the Chair of each committee, along with each staff liaison and the CEO would 
develop recommended changes to committees as a whole as well as individual committees 
for Board consideration.  

The Audit Committee needed to be finalized and come before the Board. All other 
Committees’ responsibilities have been approved by the Board. 

Fiscal Impact: 
None 

Board Options: 
1) Review the proposed changes to Part 3, Section 5 and consider approval by the Board at
this meeting as written.
2) Review the proposed changes to Part 3, Section 5 with amendments and consider approval
at this meeting.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 or #2 

Attachments: 
1) 5) CPM Part 3 Committees Section 5 Audit Committee – Redline and Clean 

20

9.A Action Item



REDLINE VERSION: 

SECTION 5 – AUDIT COMMITTEE PROPOSAL 

3.5.1. Membership:  
To the extent possible, the Audit Committee shall consist of two or more GVR members who should have 
knowledge of financial reporting and internal control procedures.  The committee shall have no less than 
three and no more than five members.       
3.5.2. Responsibilities:  
A. The Audit Committee functions in the capacity of an independent overseer of GVR’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. This oversight is conducted by review of the reporting and communication with
from a qualified independent auditing firm prior to presentation to the board of directors. The committee is
an independent conduit between GVR and the auditing firm. The Committee is not involved in the
Corporation’s daily accounting functions.
B. The principal functions of the Audit Committee are:
1. To recommend a CPA firm to the GVR Board to act as the Corporation’s independent auditor.
2. To review the independent auditor’s terms of engagement.
3. To review the results of each audit including opinion qualifications or expectations with the auditor

and GVR management.
4. To review the auditor’s management letter and GVR management’s response with the auditor and

GVR management as is deemed necessary.
5. To review issues and disputes that may arise between GVR management and the independent auditor

during an audit.
6. To review the IRS Form 990 with the CPA and GVR management as is deemed necessary.
7. To review the adequacy of internal financial controls with GVR management and the board.

CLEAN VERSION: 

SECTION 5 – AUDIT COMMITTEE 

3.5.1. Membership:  
To the extent possible, the Audit Committee shall consist of two or more GVR members who should have 
knowledge of financial reporting and internal control procedures.  The committee shall have no less than three 
and no more than five members.      
3.5.2. Responsibilities:  
A. The Audit Committee functions in the capacity of an independent overseer of GVR’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. This oversight is conducted by review of the reporting and communication with a
qualified independent auditing firm prior to presentation to the board of directors. The committee is an
independent conduit between GVR and the auditing firm. The Committee is not involved in the Corporation’s
daily accounting functions.
B. The principal functions of the Audit Committee are:
1. To recommend a CPA firm to the GVR Board to act as the Corporation’s independent auditor.
2. To review the independent auditor’s terms of engagement.
3. To review the results of each audit including opinion qualifications or expectations with the auditor and

GVR management.
4. To review the auditor’s management letter and GVR management’s response with the auditor and GVR

management as is deemed necessary.
5. To review issues and disputes that may arise between GVR management and the independent auditor

during an audit.
6. To review the IRS Form 990 with the CPA and GVR management as is deemed necessary.
7. To review the adequacy of internal financial controls with GVR management and the board.

21

Attachment 1



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Transition Plan for Moving from 12 to 9 Directors 

Prepared By: Carol Crothers Meeting Date: January 24, 2024 

Presented By: Carol Crothers Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Board Affairs Committee (BAC) 
Action Requested: 
Approve transition plan. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 
Background Justification: 
We need to have a clear transition plan that explains how we will move from 12 to 9 
directors.  At this point there are two options: 

1. We seat 3 new directors each year.  Initially we will have 3 directors serving 3 years, 4
directors serving 2 more years and 4 directors serving 1 more year.  To potentially
accelerate the process of getting down to 9 directors, we will not replace the first
person who resigns from a term year that contains 4 directors.  If a term year gets
below 3 directors, the vacancy will be filled by the next highest vote getter from the
latest election as has been our policy.   (It has been suggested that a cleaner way to
say this and put it in the ballot materials is: Transition plan to be added to the CPM
after the elections if Question #2 passes: The transition beginning in 2024 will consist
of three directors elected to a three-year term instead of four directors, bringing the
board to nine directors by 2026. To accelerate the process, if a director serving in a
term year that has 4 directors, resigns, that director will not be replaced.  Any time
the number of directors in each term year falls below three, the Board will follow the
Corporate Policy Manual procedure to replace the director.)

2. We seat 3 new directors each year and replace resigning directors as we have done in
the past.  It will take the full 3 election cycles to get down to 9 directors.

Board Options: 
Option #1 

Recommended Motion: 
If our members approve changing from 12 directors to 9 directors, beginning in 2024 we will 
elect and seat 3 directors as 4 leave the board.  We will do the same in 2025 and 2026 
bringing our number of directors down from 12 to 11 to 10 to 9.  After 2026 3 directors will 
be elected as 3 end their terms. If a director from a term group with 4 directors resigns the 
director will not be replaced accelerating the movement to 9 directors.  However, if 
resignations allow a term group to fall below 3 directors, the resigning director will be 
replaced as before, ie with the next highest vote getter from the latest election.  The CPM 
will be updated with this information. 

22

9.B.1 Action Item



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Bylaw Ballot Materials 
Prepared By: Carol Crothers, BAC Chair Meeting Date: January 24, 2024 

Presented By: Carol Crothers, BAC Chair Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Board Affairs Committee (BAC) 
Action Requested: 
Approve bylaw ballot materials including the short descriptions of why change is requested 
for the bylaw amendments. 
Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 5:  Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation. 
Background Justification: 
Staff, GVR attorney and BAC have been working on proposed bylaw amendments since last 
April.  The Board has approved the 5 bylaw changes. The BAC has reviewed the ballot 
materials, provided short rationale for each of the bylaw amendments and would like the 
Board to review and approve. The goal is to have a clear, short explanation of the reason for 
the proposed changes.    

Fiscal Impact: 
None 
Board Options: 

1) Approve BAC bylaw ballot format.
2) Suggest changes.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 
Recommended Motion: 
Board approves the recommended bylaw ballot materials. 

Attachments: 
1) Recommended Bylaw Ballot

23

9.B.2 Action Item



2. 2024 Proposed Bylaws Amendments
(based on March 25, 2020 bylaws) 

The GVR bylaws serve as the contractual agreement between GVR and its members. The 
bylaws have served GVR well. Due to legal and circumstantial changes, the GVR Board and 
Administration are proposed and endorsed specific modifications to the bylaws and seek 
member approval. These modifications are designed to achieve three key objectives: 1) Ensure 
compliance with the current Arizona laws; 2) Optimize the efficiency of administrative staff 
operations; and 3) Improve the effectiveness of Board activities, ultimately enhancing GVR’s 
overall functionality. Changing the bylaws requires a 2/3 majority vote from the members. 

Please note: Changes to the current bylaws are reflected in the Proposed Bylaws 
Amendments in bold print, underlined, and italicized. 

QUESTION #1 VOTING RIGHTS                FOR                   AGAINST 

Rationale: (A) allow and retain one (only 1) vote per household, (C) include online voting, and 
(F) limits Board service to one member per GVR household, consistent with voting rights.

ARTICLE II - MEMBERSHIP PROPERTY AND MEMBERS 
Section 6: Voting Rights, A., C., and add F.  

CURRENTLY READS: 
A. A GVR Member in good standing is entitled to one (1) vote for each GVR Property owned;
provided, however, that there shall be only one (1) vote per GVR Property. If any GVR
Member casts a vote representing a certain GVR Property, it will thereafter be conclusively
presumed for all purposes that such individual was acting with the authority and consent of
all other owners of the same GVR Property. In the event that more than one (1) vote is cast
for a particular GVR Property, none of the votes shall be counted and all of the votes for
such GVR Property shall be deemed void.

PROPOSED: 
A. A GVR Member in good standing is entitled to one (1) vote for each GVR Property owned;
provided, however, that there shall be only one (1) vote per GVR Property. If any GVR
Member casts a vote representing a certain GVR Property, it will thereafter be conclusively
presumed for all purposes that such individual was acting with the authority and consent of
all other owners of the same GVR Property. In the event that more than one (1) vote is cast
for a particular GVR Property, only the first vote cast, shall be counted.

And 

CURRENTLY READS: 
C. All voting by GVR Members shall be by written ballot.

PROPOSED: 
C. All voting by GVR Members shall be by written ballot or electronic voting, consistent
with Arizona Nonprofit Corporation Act. See Article XI. No proxies are permitted.

And 

PROPOSED: ADD F 
F. A GVR Member in good standing has the right to serve on the Board of Directors
provided no other member of the household (whether related by marriage, 
cohabitation, or otherwise) is on the Board during the same time period. 

24

Attachment 1



 
QUESTION #2 NUMBER OF DIRECTORS       FOR                AGAINST   
 

Rationale: (Article IV and V) To be consistent with “best practice” recommendations of most 
professional researchers/consultants of nonprofit Boards, and to minimize the “tied vote”. The 
proposed implementation procedure would gradually move GVR from twelve to nine Directors 
over no more than three years starting in 2024.” 
 
ARTICLE IV - BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Section 1: Number of Directors  
  
CURRENTLY READS:  

The affairs of GVR shall be governed by a Board of Directors consisting of twelve (12) voting 
members who shall be elected from the members of The Corporation residing within the 
jurisdiction of GVR. 

 
PROPOSED:  

The affairs of GVR shall be governed by a Board of Directors consisting of nine (9) voting 
members who shall be elected from the members of The Corporation who have voting 
rights as defined in Article II - Section 6.  

 
AND 
 
ARTICLE V - ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 
Section 1: Term of Office 
 

CURRENTLY READS: 
A. The term of office of a Director elected by the membership shall be for three (3) years. 

Each year the term of office of four (4) Directors shall expire and four (4) Directors shall 
be elected for a term of three (3) years to succeed those Directors whose terms expire. 
No Director may serve more than two (2) consecutive terms including time served as an 
appointed Director. A former Director may be re-elected after one (1) or more years’ 
absence from the Board. 

 
PROPOSED: 

A. The term of office of a Director elected by the membership shall be for three (3) years. 
Each year the term of office of three (3) Directors shall expire and three (3) Directors 
shall be elected for a term of three (3) years to succeed those Directors whose terms 
expire. No Director may serve more than two (2) consecutive terms including time 
served as an appointed Director. A former Director may be re-elected after one (1) or 
more years’ absence from the Board. 

 
 
  

25



 
QUESTION #3 LIMITS OF AUTHORITY   FOR       AGAINST  
 
Rationale: (Article VI) Clarify current wording by being specific in accounting terms and project 
types without changing the spirit of reasonable limits to fiscal authority: 1) Focus on new 
capital projects; 2) Provide a well-defined baseline (latest audited approved annual net revenue 
– does not include investments); and 3) Set the limit at twelve percent (12%) based on using 
last year’s revenue excluding investments. 
 
ARTICLE VI - POWERS, DUTIES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Section 2: Limits of Authority and Indebtedness 
 
CURRENTLY READS:  

The Board of Directors is not authorized to enter into any contract that requires an annual 
payment that exceeds ten percent (10%) of the annual budget. Any contract requiring an 
annual payment that exceeds ten percent (10%) of the annual budget shall only be valid if 
approved, in advance, by the affirmative vote of regular members representing a majority of 
the total votes cast, provided that the total number of votes cast equals at least twenty 
percent (20%) of the total votes in The Corporation. 
 

PROPOSED:  
The Board of Directors is not authorized to enter into any contract for new or initiative-
type capital projects that exceeds twelve percent (12%) of the latest audited 
approved annual net revenue (does not include investments). Any contract for new 
or initiative-type capital projects that exceeds this figure, shall only be valid if 
approved, in advance, by the affirmative vote of regular members representing a majority of 
the total votes cast, provided that the total number of votes cast equals at least twenty 
percent (20%) of the total votes in The Corporation. Contracts for unique projects may 
not be broken up so as to avoid the requirements of this section. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 26



 
QUESTION #4 VOTING METHODS              FOR           AGAINST  

 
Rationale: (Article XI) Combines two sections and clarifies that electronic and written balloting 
is permitted by Arizona law.  
 
ARTICLE XI - MEMBERSHIP VOTING 
Section 1: Voting at a Meeting  
Section 2: Alternative Voting Methods (Section 1 and 2 Combined in Proposed) 
 
CURRENTLY READS: 

Section 1: Voting at a Meeting 
The election of Directors, the amendment of bylaws and any matter that requires approval 
of the members shall be taken by written ballot. 
 
Section 2: Alternative Voting Methods 
Any action, including proposed amendments to these bylaws or the election of Directors, 
which can be properly taken by the members of GVR at an Annual or Special Meeting of said 
members, may be taken by written ballot communicated to every GVR member entitled to 
vote by either mail, facsimile, Email, or other written form of communication as the Board of 
Directors shall determine from time to time with the same force and effect as though acted 
upon at an Annual or Special Meeting. 
 

PROPOSED:   
The election of Directors, the amendment of bylaws and any matter that requires approval 
of the members, and any action, including proposed amendments to these bylaws or the 
election of Directors,  which can be taken by the members of GVR at an Annual or Special 
Meeting of said members, shall be taken by written ballot communicated to and received 
from every GVR Member entitled to vote by either mail, email, or other written form of 
communication as the Board of Directors shall determine from time to time, including 
online electronic voting, with the same force and effect as though acted upon at an 
Annual or Special Meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 27



 
QUESTION #5 AVAILABILITY OF RECORDS     FOR     AGAINST  

 
Rationale: (Article XII) To clarify and conform to Arizona law, the granting of access to GVR 
records by qualified GVR Members and provide reasonable notice to the administrative staff.   
 
ARTICLE XII - MISCELLANEOUS 
Section 2: Availability of Records 
 
CURRENTLY READS:  

The books, records and papers of The Corporation shall, for specific and proper purpose, at 
all reasonable times during business hours be subject to examination by any regular 
member of The Corporation upon written demand to The Corporation. 
 

PROPOSED:  
The books, records and papers of The Corporation shall, for specific and proper purpose, 
and consistent with the applicable provisions of the Arizona Nonprofit Act, at all 
reasonable times during business hours be subject to examination by any GVR Member or 
any Assigned Member that has been given voting rights, upon written demand to The 
Corporation at least five (5) business days before the requested examination date. 
 

 
 
 
 

3. Approve GVR 2022 Annual Meeting Minutes 
 

Yes No 
 
 

Approval of meeting minutes requires the affirmative vote of a majority of members voting 
on the matter. 

 
 

28


	Nov and Dec 2023 Fin Stmt for BOD.pdf
	11272023 FAC Minutes draft.pdf
	Fiscal Affairs Committee
	Board Members present: Carol Crothers

	ADP94EF.tmp
	FAC Subcommittee Report: ��Status Report on Proposed Draft Business  Plan for the Development of a Del Sol Clubhouse Cafe��
	Proposed Business Plan for Development of a Del Sol Clubhouse Cafe�
	Prior Strategic plans and Ad Hoc Committees Identified the need for a social gathering place /café since 2015 �
	A 2018 GVR Ad Hoc Committee also looked at the concept of The Great Good Place 
	Overview of Subcommittee- Methodology 
	Business Plan Draft Review – December 27, 2023: Subcommittee Meetings of Jan 3 and Jan 8 �
	Description of  Cafe
	Vision and Goals of Del Sol Clubhouse with Café 
	Space: Architectural Drawing of Del Sol – First Floor 
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Subcommittee’s Market Research – Findings Incorporated into Proposed Business Plan
	Competitive Assessment Findings - La Posada Findings
	Competitive Analysis Findings – Sun City Bistro
	Pictures of Sun City Bistro 
	Primary Target Market for Del Sol Café 
	Market and Sales Strategy 
	Potential Changes to the Corporate Policy Manual 
	Staffing model based on paid staff not volunteers
	Summary of  Financial Proforma /Options 
	Summary of Three-Year Projections
	Café Options and Other Service Delivery Option 
	Market Survey
	Market Study- Validate Assumptions/Next Steps 
	�Next Steps and Timetable for Del Sol Clubhouse and Cafe �
	Additional Slides
	Products and Services  
	Slide Number 28
	Gradual phase in of Customer Volume  





